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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Gateway Rail Freight Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Gateway Rail Freight
Limited (“the Holding Company™} and one joint venture, which comprise the consolidated Balance
sheet as at March 31 2019, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
atoresaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Holding
Company and joint venture as at March 31, 2019, its profit including other comprehensive income, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section [43(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Holding Company and
its joint venture in accordance with the *Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors Report, but does not include the

consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other mformation and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash tlows and changes in equity of the Holding Company and its joint venture in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Holding Company and
its joint venture and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selfection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Holding Company and its joint venture’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Holding Company and its joint venture or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Holding Company and its joing
venture’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS tinancial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue

an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material it,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
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statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i} of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its joint venture has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Holding Company and its joint venture’s ability
to continue as a going concern. [f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However. tuture events or conditions may
cause the Holding Company and its joint venture to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all refationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

(a) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements include the Holding Company’s share of net profit of
Rs. NIL for the year ended March 31, 2019, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, in respect of one joint venture, whose financial statements, other financial information
have been audited by other auditor and whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management.
Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of such joint venture and our report in terms of sub-sections (3)
of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid joint venture, is based solely on the
report of such other auditor. Our opinion 1s not modified in respect of this matter.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

b2

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act based on our audit and
on the consideration of report of the other auditor on separate financial statements, as noted in the
‘Other Matter” paragraph, we give in the “Annexure 1™ a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliet were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Holding
Company and its joint venture so far as it appears from our examination of those books and
report of the other auditor;

{¢) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the consolidated Cash Flow
Statement and consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Holding Company and its joint venture with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure |7 to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid
/ provided by the Holding Company and its joint venture to its directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

{h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i.  The Holding Company and its joint venture has disclosed the impact of pending litigations
on its financial position in its consolidated Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 31 to
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

1i.  The Holding Company and its joint venture did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

tii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its joint venture.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIT Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May §3, 2019
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statement of Gateway Rail Freight Limited
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Gateway Rail Freight Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company™)
and its joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Respoasibility for Internal Financial Centrols

The respective Board of Director of Holding Company and its joint venture, which are companies
incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Holding Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company and the joint venture's internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated eftectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over tinancial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
financial statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
mamntenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material eftect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to
these financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

fn our opinion, the Holding Company and its joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India,
have maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants
FCAT Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300003

*
&

( \‘\j \/

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership No.: 096766
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 13, 2019




GATEWAY RALL FREIGHT LIMITED

CIN: U60231D1.2003P1LCI38308

Consolidated Baivuce Sheet as at 31 March 2019
(Al amounts in 1ok 15, 2nless othenwise stated)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 76,639.18 76.103.12
Capital werk-in-progress 3(a) 150.50 ,141.68
Other Intangible Assets 4 2,306.95 2,566.94
Investment in Joint Veoture 5 - -
Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 6(e) 660.73 376.20
(ii) Loans 6(f) - -
Income Tax Assels {net} 9 947.70 729.99
Other Non-Current Assets 8 558.61 83L.90
Total Non-Current Assets B1,272.76 84,740.83
Current Assets
Financial assets
() Investments &{a) 2,222.04 0,782.18
(i} Trade Receivables o(h) 7:598.00 7,387.30
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivaients 6{c) 57342 3,400.40
(i¥) Bank Balances other than {if) above 6(d) 2.86 -
(v) Other Financial Assets afe) 408,23 7.5
Other Current Assels 10 74125 805.74
Tatal Current Assets 11,545.80 22,202,213
TOTAL ASSETS 52,818.56 106,95%2.06
EQUITY ANI} LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 11{a} 20,150.03 20,150,073
Instrumenis Entirely Equity in Nature 11(b) 29.580.00 29,580.00
Reserve & Surpius 1i(c) 17,001.12 20.646.57
Total Equity 66,731,135 70,376.20
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financiat liabilities
(i} Borrowings 12 11,815.11 15,142.09
Lmployce Benefit Obligations 13 673,57 455344
Deferred Tuax Liabilities (net) 7 785.62 B41.46
Government Grant {(EPCG} 18 358.97 401.68
Fotal Non-Current Liabilitles 13,633.27 16,818.67
Financink liabilities
(i} Borrowings 14 1,033.21 1,001.65
(i) Trade Payables
- Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enlerprises and Smati Enterprises 15 13106 185.88
- Total Cutstanding dues of Creditors other than Micre Enterprises and Small = 8.4
Enterprises 13 4,283.50 3,008.42
(ili} Other Financiaf Liabilities 16 5,035.7G 4,123.0:8
Employee Benefit Obligations i3 70.60 84,7
.Other Current Linbilities 17 5,817.00 £349.55
Government Grant (FPCG) 18 83.07 84.0:
Total Current Liabilities 12,454,154 10,737.19
CTOTAL LIABILITIES 26,089,414 27 595 K6
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 92,818.56 1043,952. 06

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,

In: terms of our report of even date,

For S5.R. Bntliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm registration mmber, : 301003E/E300005

.,
S B W)
= a

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership No. 1 90766

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 13, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Gateway Rail Feeight Limited

Prem Kishan Dass Gupta
Chairman and Managing Divector
DIN:- oocondye

.

‘C/->/
Nnndan Chopra
Senior Vice President (Finance andd Accounts)
aned Company Secretany

Place: Mew Delhi
Date: May 13,2010

Sachin Surendra Bhanushali
Director, Chief Fxecutive Qfficer
and Chief Financiat Officer

DIN- o1479918




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED

CIN: Uboz3iDL2005PLC138508

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2059
(All amounts in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended Year Ended

Motes 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Continuing Operstions
Ravenue From Operations 19 86,741.46 78,879.96
Other Income 20 1,023.65 L,39L57
‘Fotal Incomme 87 765.11 B0,271.53
EXPENSES
Operating Expensos 21 50,749.94 54,823.40
Employee Benefits Expenses 22 3,895.10 2,818.11
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 23 5,732.31 5.589.57
Finance Costs 24 1,460.31 2,035.51
Other Expenses 25 6,009.47 5,245.50
Total Expenses 7384713 70,516.09
Profit before share of net profit of investment accounted

98 55

using equity methed and tax 15917.9 9:755-44
Share of net profit ef joint venture accounted using the equity B B
nethod
Profit before tax 13,017.08 975544
Income Tax Expense 26
- Qurrent Year 2,815.94 1,893.67
-- Deferred Tax (30.29} (456.31)
Total Tax Expense 2,783.65 1437.36
Profit for the year 11,122,373 8,318.08
Other Comprehensive Income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit orloss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 13 (73.13) {20.17)
Income tax relating to tha above 25.55 6.98
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (47-58) (13,500
Teotal Comprehensive Income for the year 15,084,753 8 1304.80
Earnings per equity share 34
- Basic and Diluted earnings per share (INR} 2,76 2.06
The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
In terms of our report of even date.
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP - For and or behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Gatewsy Rail Freight Limited
JCAI Firm registration number. : 301003 Ezccoos

Prem Kishian Dass Gupta
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN:- soo11670

\(\c./y--W/Q @

Nandan Chopra

Senior Viee President
(Finance and Accounts) and
Company Secretary

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Mambership No. : 96766

Place: Mew Dethi Flaca: New Delhi
Date: May 13,2019 Date: May 13,2010

Sachin Surendrs Bhanushali
Director, Chief Executive Officer
and Chiaf Financial Officer

DIN:- 0179918




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
CIN: UGoz31DLzoosPLC138598
(All amounts in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated Statementt of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March zo19

A

Equity Share Capital

Particufars Amount
As at s April 2017 20,150.03
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31 March 2018 (Hefer Note 11) 20,150.03
Changes in equity share capilal -
As 8t 31 March 2010 {Refer Nole 11) 20,150.03
Instruments entirely eguity in nature - Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

Particulars Amaunt
Adat s April zo17 2958000
Asatm March 2018 (Hefer Note x1) an S8C.00
As at 21 March 2019 (Refer Note 11) 29,58c,00

Other Equily attributable to equity sharcholders

Equity component Reserves and Surplus Total
of compound . . - —
cont financial Security Premium Capital Retained
Farticulars instroment Reserve Redemption Earnings
Reserve
{Refer Note 39)
Bolance as at 1 April 2017 863,67 32.05 - 21,204.23 22,200.95
Profitfor the year - - B,318.08 831808
Other comprehensive incoms, net of tax - b {3319} {13490
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 8.204.89 B304 80
‘Transfer {from) / to retained earmings - 11,506.00 {11,500,00) -
Redemption of Equity component of compound financial instruzsent (865.67) - - (865.67)
Balaunce as at 33 March 2018 - 132.05 11,OG.00 18,014 12 24),646.17
Less  impact on adoplion of Ind AS 115 - - 24.16 24.10
Restated Balance asats April 2018 - 132.05 11,500.00 17,989.96 20.622.01
Profitfor the year - - + 11,132.33 11,132.33
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - : {47.58) (47.58)
Toln} comprehensive income for the year - - 108§ .75 11.084.75
Cash dividends - - 19,663.71 19,603,731
Dividend distribution tax - - 4,041.03 4,041.93
Balance as at a1 March 2019 - 132.0% 1L500.00 5.209.07 17,001.12

The above Statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the sccompanying notes,

in terms of our report of even date.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm registration number. : yoroo3E/Ezo0005

LA
per Vishal Sharma

Partner
Membership No, : g6766

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 13,2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Pirectors of
Gateway Rail Freight Limited

Prem Kishan Dass Gupta
Chairman and Managing Directer

DIN:- cooné70

Nawudan Chopra

/
Sachin Surendra Bhanushali
Director, Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer

DIN:- 01479018

Senior Yice President (Finance and Accounts) and

Cothpany Secretary

Place: New Delld
Pate: May 13, 2019




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
CIN: (60231 Di2005PLC138598

Congolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the yenr ended 31 March zo19

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per above comprise of the following

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bank Balance in Current Account

Cheques on hand

Bank Deposits with maturity of period less than 3 months

Bank Overdrafs
Balances per statement of cash flows

The above statement of cash flow should be read it conjunction with the accompanying notes.

interms of our repert of even date.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Co. LIP
Chartered Accountants
ICAF Firm registration number. : 3ox003E/E300005

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership No. : 96766

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 13, 2019

Notes

6(c)
6(c)
6(c)
6(c}

L2

Year Ended
ai March 2010
Rupees in Lakhs

Year Ended
31 March 2018
Rupees in Lakhs

12.46 26.10
3327 77339
27.60 -

- 2,700.00
67342 349949
{54023} {496.06}
33.29 3:003.43

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of
Gateway Hail Freight Limited

Prem Kishan Dass Gupta

Cheirman and
Managing Director
DIN:- 00031670

e

Nandan Chopra

Senior Vice President
(Finance and Accounts)
and Company Secretary

Plce: New Delhi

Date: May 13, 2019

e

Sachin Surendra Bhanushali
Director, Chief Exocutive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer
DIN:- 01479618




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Consolidated Finaneial Statements for the year snded 21 March 2019

43 Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of Financial Statements
Standards issued but not yet effective:
The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s financial
statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017 and
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 amending the following standard:
Ind AS 116 Leases
Ind AS 16 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 2019 and it replaces [nd AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recogrition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for ali leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the tease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g, a change in
the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee witl genevally vecognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use assel. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantiatly unchanged
from today’s accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between
two types of leases: operating and finance leases. The Group intends to adopt these standards from 1 April 2019. The impact on adoption of Ind AS 116 on the
financial statements is given below. Ind AS 116 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under Ind AS 17.

Transition to Ind AS 116

The Group is proposing to use the “Modified Retrospeetive Approach’ for transitioning to Ind AS 116, and take the cumualative adjustment to retatned earnings, on
the date of initial application {April 1, 2019). Accordingly, comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31, 2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The Group
has elected certain avaitable practical expedients on transition.

The Group is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the firancial statements is being evaluated.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP {‘or and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Gateway Rail Freight Limited
ICAI Firma registration number. : 301003E/E300005

{
H
PR

per Vishal Sharma

Prem Kishan Dass Gupta Sachin Surendra Bhanushali
Partner Chairman and Director, Chief Executive Officer
Membership No. : 96766 Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer

DIN:- 00011670 DIN:- 01479018

Nandan Chopra
Senior Vice President
{Finance and Accounts} and
Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi Place; New Dethi
Date: May 13,2019 Date: May 13, 2010




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
CIN: U60231DL20a5PLC13 8598
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2019

Year Ended Year Ended
Notes 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
A, Cash flow front operating activities:
Prefit Before income tax from
Contimiing Operations 13,517.98 9,755.94
Discontinued operations - -
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 5,732.31 5.580.57
Provision for Doubtful Debts {Net} 25 90.99 686
Provision for Doubtfut Ground Rent {Met) 25 21.88 {32.11}
Prevision for Doubtful Advances 25 - 12.09
Gain on sale of investments (Net) 20 (572.52} (752.44)
Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through prefit or loss 20 (22.043} (277.79)
Loss/ (Gnin) on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 25 441 o.20
Finance Costs 24 1,460.3: 2,035.51
Dividend Income classified as investing cash Gows 20 (27.67 -
Interest [ncome classified as investing cash flows 20 {74.0t) (57.12)
Net exchange differences 20 (20,943 7137
Liabilities/ Provisions ne Longer Required Written Back 20 {102.85} (121.13)
QOperating Profit before working capital changes 20,427.63 16,230.45
Change in Opernting assets and linbilities:
- (Increase}/ Decranse in Trade Receivables 6(b) (501.71) (1,202.85)
- Increase/ {Decrease) in Trade Payables 15 423153 9456.14
- (Increase}f Decresse in Other Pinancial Assets 6(e) {B.49} {10362}
- {Increase}/ Decrease ir Other Current Assets 10 64.49 {268.44)
- {Increase}/ Decrense in Other Non Current Assels 8 4.04 18.56
- (Increase}/ Decrease ir Other Bank Balances Not eonsidered as Cash and (2 86) 20407
Cash Equivalents 6(d) - )
- Increase/ {Decrease) in Employee Benefit Obligation 13 152.83 {3.63}
- Increase/ {Decrease) i Other Financial Liabilities 1o 70230 232.30
- Increase/ {Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 17 467.65 507.66
Cash generated from operations 21,909,502 16,461,554
~+ Income Taxes Paid o 303365 1,695.08
Net cash inflow from operating aclivities {(A) 18 875.27 1:4,466.46
B. Cash flow from investing activitics :
Purchase of Property, Plant and equipment 3 (2,281.40) (6,506.63)
Proceeds from Property, Plant and equipment 3 132.52 ase
(Incrsase}/ Decrease in Fixed Depesits with Banks 6{e) {58.50) Bo.93
Payments for purchase of investments 6(z) (2,200.00) (9,504.39)
Proceads from sale of Investments 6(a) 10,982.37 30,906.02
Interast Received 20 129.89 15.60
Net cash outflow from investing activities (B) 6,004.68 15,094.85
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Procesds of Long-Term Borrowings 12 - 376.26
Repayment of Long-Terny Borrowings 12 (2,685.54) (23,776.47}
Repayment of Equity Component of Compeund Financial [nstnzment - {865.67)
Dividend Phid to Share holders (i9,663.7) -
Dividend Distribution Tax {4,043.93) -
Interest Paid - 24 (45511 (2,083.07)
Net cashoinfow from financing activities (o) {2,8530.29) (26,348.95)
Net Inerease/ (Decrense) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+DR+C) (z,970.824) 3,012.36
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year Glc) 3,003.43 (108.93)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 3340 2:003.43
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Background

Gateway Rail Freight Limited {the ‘Group) is engaged in providing inter-modal logistics services. It provides container logistics solution between major
Indian ports and Inland Container Depots (ICD) by providing rail services for Expart, Import and Domestic containerised cargo, integrated with road
trasportation, transit and bonded warshousing, refrigerated container facilities and other value added services. The Group ¢perates from its four owned
ICD's at Garhi Harsaru (Gurgaon), Sanehwal (Ludhiana), Asaoti (Faridabad) and Viramgham (Alunedabad) and a private freight terminal at Navi Mumbai
urder agreement The Group owns and operates through its rakes and a fleet of trailers.

The financial statements were avthorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 13 May 2019.

STGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICITS:
This note provides a list of the significant accounting polivies adopted in the preparation of these financial stetements. These pelicies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation:

(i) Compliance With Ind AS

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared as a separate set of financial statement in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standerds) Reles, 2015. (as amended from time to time).

(i1} Historical Cost Conventien

The financial statements have been prepared on a historicai cost basis, Except for the following:
-- Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measuved at fair value,

- Define benefit plan-plan assets measured at fair value; and

{iii) Current and non-currcnt classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

a. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in nermal operating cycle

b. Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

¢. Expected to be realised within twelve myonths after the reporting period, or

d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A Hability is current when:

a. It is expected to be settled in normal operating eycle

b. It iz held primarily for the purpose of trading

c. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d. There is ne unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least bwelve months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other lishilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified ag non-current assots and Habilities,

The eperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified
twelve meonths as its operating cycle.

Investment in Joint Venture

Investment in Joint Venture are recognised at cost as per Ind AS 27 in these separate financial statements.

Segment Reporting:

Operating segmants are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided te the Chief Operating Decision Maker {"CODM") of the
Group.

The CODM, who is responsible for gllocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing
Director of the Group. The Group has identified one reportable segment “Rail Logistics Business” ie. based on the information reviewed by CODM. Refer
note 3¢ for segment information presented. . )

Forcign currency translation:

(1) Functional and presentation curreney
ftemns included in the Bnancial statements are measuted using the cwrrency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’}. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Group's functional and presentation eurrency.

(i1} Transactions and bhalances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and figbilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in Statemeont of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustiment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance cost. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Stotement of profit and loss on a net basis.

Non-monetary assats and Habilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the
date of transaction.
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Non-monetary items that are neasured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determinsd. Translation difference on sssets and linbilities carried at faiv value are reported as part of the fair valus gain or loss. For example, transiation
differences on non- monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in statement ef profit
and loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCT are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

All monetary assets and linbilities in foreign curvency are restated at the end of accounting peried. With respect to long-term foreign eurrency monetary
itenys, the Group has adopted the following policy:

Long Terwm foreign cwrrency monetary item taken upto 31 March 2016 on depreciable assets:

» Foreign exchange difference on account of long term foreign currency loan on a depreciable asset, are adjusted in the cost of the depreciable asset, which
would be depreciated over the balance life of the asset

Long Term foreign currency monetary ftem: taken alter 01 April 2015 on depreciable assets:
« Foreign sxchange difference on aceount of a depreciable assets, are incjuded in the Profit and Loss.

A monetary asset or liability is termed as a long-term foreign currency menetary item, if the asset or liability is expressed in a foreign currency and has a
term of 12 months or more at the date of origination of the asset or liability.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Group derives revenue from providing inter-modal logistics services between majer Indian ports and Infand Container Depots (ICD) by providing rail
services for Export, Import and Domestic containerised cargo, integrated with road transportation, transit and bonded warehousing, refrigerated
container facilities and other value added services.

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Custoners” provides a controi-based revenue recognition model and provides a five siep application approach to
be followed for revenue recognition

- Identify the contract(s) with a custeney

- Identify the performance obligations

- Determine the transaction price

- Aliocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

-« Recognise revenuie when or as an entity satisfies performance cbligation

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its
revenue arrangements, except for the agency services, because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties

Rendering of services «

(i) Income from Rail kransportation is recognised en the basis of actual journey conmpleted as at year end.

(i) Income from Road transportation is recognised on propertionate completion of the movement and delivery of goods te the party/ designated place.
(iii) Income from Container hondling, storage and transportation are recognised on propertionate completion of the movement and delivery of goods to
the party/designated place.

(iv) Income from Ground Rent is rocognised for the period the container is lying in the Container Freight Station. However, in case of long standing
containers, the income from Ground Rent is ot accrued for a period bayond 60 days as on the basis of past history the collectability is unt reasonably
assured.

(v) Income from auction is recognised when the Group auctions long-standing cargo that has not been: cleared by customer. Revenue and expenses for
Auction are recognised when auction is completed after obtaining necessary approvals from appropriate authorities. Auction salss inchude recovery of the
cost incurred in conducting auctions, custom dulies on long-standing cargo and acerued ground rent and handling charges relating to long-standing cargo.
Surplus, out of auctions, if any, after meeting ali expenses and the actual ground rent, is eredited to a separate account "Auction Surplus’ and is shown
under the head ‘Other Current Liabilities” Unclaimed Auction Surplus, if any, in excess of period specified under the Limitations Act is written back a3
‘Tncome' in the following financial year.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, estimates the mmount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the service to the customar. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue racognised will not ccour when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved. The Group rccogm?es changes in the estimated amount of variable consideration in the period in which the change oecurs. Some
contracts for the sale of service provide customers with volume rebates and pricing incentives, which give rise to variable consideration. -

The Group provides retrospeclive vohuue rebates aud pricing incentives to certain customers ence the quantity of products purchased during the period
exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration for the
expeeted future rebates, the Group applies the most likely amount method for contracts with a single-velume threshald and the expected value method for
contracts with more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the
number of volume threshokds contained inthe contract. The Group then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and
recognises a refund liability for the expected future rebates.
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Contract balances

TFrade receivables

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is uncenditional (L.e., only the passage of time is required befere
payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting pelicies of financtal assets in section financial instruments — initial recognition and
subsaguent measurement.

Contract Habilities

Accontract Liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Greup has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customier. [f a customer pays consideration before the Greup transfers services to the eustomer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due éwhichever is earlier}. Contract liabilities are recogrised as revenue when the Group performs
unider the contract

Cost to obtain a contract

The Group pays sales commission to its selling agents for each contract that they obtain for the Group. The Group has elacted to apply the optional
practical expedient for costs to obtain a contract which allows the Group to immediately expense sales commissions (included in advertisement and
sales promotion expense under other exponses) becanse the amortization period of the asset that the Group othervise would have used is one year ot
less.

Costs to fulfil a contract i.e. freight, insurance and other selling expenses are recognized as an expense inthe period in which related revenue is
recognised.

Critical judgements

The Group's contracts with custosers include promises to transfer service to the customers. Judgement is required to determine the transaction
price for the contract. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements suck as
schemes, incentives, cash discounts, ete. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised wili not occur and is reassessed at the end of each
reporting period.

Estimates of rebates and discounts are sensitive to changes in cireumstances and the Group's past experience regarding returns and rebate
entitiements may not be representative of customers’ actuad returns and rebate entitiements ir the future,

Costs to obtain a contract are generaily expensed as incurred. The assessment of this eviteria requires the application of judgement, in particular
when considering if costs generate or enhance resources to be used to satisfy future performance obligations and whether costs are expected ta be
recovered.

Other reventue streams

Export Benefits

Expott Entitlements in the form of Service Exports from India Scheme (SEIS) and other schemes are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of exports made and when there is no signifisant uncertainty regarding
the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Dividend
Revenue is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Interest Income

Far all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through othor comprohensive income, interest incomne is recorded using the
effective interest rate {EIR). EIR. is the rate that exsctly discounts the estimated fubare eash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financiel
instrament or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When
caloulating the effective interest rate, the Group estimales the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extension, calt and similar opticns) but does not consider the expected cradit losses. Interest income is inchuded in finance income
in the statement of profit and loss. )
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Income Tax:
The income tax expense or eredit for the period is the tax payabls on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilies attributable to temporary differsnces and to unused tax losses.

Current incoma tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tex laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period where the
Group oporates and generate taxable income. Management perindically evaluates position taken in tax returns with respect te situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferved tax

Deferred income tax is provided in fail, nsing the liability method, en temporary differsnces arising betwean the tex bases of assets and labilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Daferred inceme tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tox
Liability is settied.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts wiil be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets are not recegnised for temporary differences belween the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in interest in joint venture
where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foresseable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the eatity has a legally enforceable right to effset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or Lo realise the assets and settle the liability simultancously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or dirgctly in
equity, In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equily, respectively,

Minimum alternate tax (MAT)

“Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is recognised
for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the concerned Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.¢., the
period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Group recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is ereated by way of
credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown ag part of deferred tax asset. The Group reviews the "MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting
date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no lenger probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.”

leases:

A lease is classified at the inception date a5 a finance lease ot an operating Jease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease. Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the Group as lessee are classified as operating leases.

As g [essee

Payment made under operating lease {net of any incentive received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the period of
the lease vnless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost
incresse.

As a lessor

Lense income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight - line basis over the lease termn unless the receipts are
structured to inerease in ling with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases.

Impairment of assety

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested for impairment, or more fre(;.ue ntly if events oy changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or chimgds in circumstances indicats that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's éar ying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and vakie in use. For'the purposes of assessing
mpaiynient, assets are grouped at the Jowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or Groups of assets (eash-generating units). Non-financial assets ether than goodwill that suffered an intpairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Cash and Cash equivalents,

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash Bows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-
termm highly liquid investiments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertibie te known amounts of cash and which are
subject ko an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowing in Short term horrowings on current
liabilities in the balance sheet.

Trade Receivable
Trade Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effsctive intorest method, less provision for
impairment.

Investments and other financial assets

{i) Classification
The Group classifies financial assets in the following measurement categories.
-- those to be measured subsequantly at fatr value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit and loss and

-~ those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the eash flows,

For the assets measured at fair value, gain and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investment in debt
instrument, this will depend on the business model in which the investment s held.

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial assels not at fair valee threugh profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable lo the acquisition to the fnancial assets. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised innmediately in profit or ioss,

Al} assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value bievarchy, deseribad
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical essets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is signifieant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Lavel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and linbilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels inthe hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lewest level input that is significant ta the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

Debt Instruments
Subsequent maasurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model for managing the assets and cash flows characteristic. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group classiftes its debt instruments.

1. Amortised Costs Assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

interost are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance -
income using the effective interest rate methad.

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acguisition and feas or costs that are an integral part of the EIR The EIR -
amorttisation is ineluded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairinent are recognised in the profit or loss. :

2. Fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVOCI): Assets that are heid for the collection of contractual cash flows and far selling the
financiat assets, where the nssets cash flows represent solely payments of principal and irterest, are measured st fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCL). Mevements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclnssified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gaing/ {losses). Interest income from these financial assets is
included in other inzome using the effective intarest rate method.

3. Fair Value through profit or [oss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCT are measured as fair value through profit or
foss. A gain or loss on & debt investeent that is subsequently measured at fzir value through profit or loss and is not part of hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(lesses) in the period in which it arises. Dividend
income from these fnancial assets is included in other income,
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(iif} Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising ipairment 1oss on financial agsets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and
other contractusl rights to receive cash or other financial assets. The Group measures the ECL associated with its assets based on historical trend, industry
practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodolegy applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in eredit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Group applies the simplified approach pevmitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

For recognition of impairnent loss on other financial assets and risk expasure, the Group detennines that whether there has been a significant increase in
the eredit risk since initial recognition. If eredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
eradit risk has increased significantly, lifetime £CL is used. If, in a subsaquent period, credit quality of the jnstrument improves such that there is no
longer & significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowanee based on 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defauit events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is
a portion of the Hifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

{iv) De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised enly when

-~ The Group has transferred the right to receive cash flows from the financial assets, or

-- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash fiows of the financial assets, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay cash flows to one or more
recipients.

When the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial nsset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transfarred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is derecognised if the Group has not retained controi of the financial asset. Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the assel is
continned to be recognised to the extent of continuing invelvement in the financial asset.

{v) Income recagnition
Interest: Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and effective interest rate.

Dividends: Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Finaucial Liabilities

(i) Classification

The Group classifies financial assets in the following measurement categories.

-- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (sither through other comprehensive income, or through profit and loss and

-- those measured at amortised cost.

(ii) Mcasurement

1. Financial liabilities at amortised cost- Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by berrowings, trade and other payables are initially recognized
at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that ace an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

2. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss- Finaneial Habilities at fair value through profit and loss are measured at fair vatue with all
changgs recagnized in the statement of profit and loss. ..




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED

lotes

)

(o)

rear ended 31 March 2010

oxed to and formir rt of the Consolidate

(iii} Reclasstfication of financiad liabilities
The Group determines clagsification of financial assets and linbilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financiat liabilities.

The foliowing table shows varivus reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original classification Rovised Accounting treatment
clagsification

Fair value is measured at reclagsification date. Difference between previous
Amortised cost FVTPL amottized cost and fair value is recognised in P&L.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR
FVTPL Amortised Cost is caloulated based on the new gross carrying amount.

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference bebween pravious
Amortised cost FVTOCI amortised eost and fair value is recognised in OCL No change in EIR due to
reclassification

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amorttised cost carrying
amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair|
FYToC] Amortised cost value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always been measured
at amortised cost,

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other

FVEPL FVTOCE adjustment is required.
Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulstive gain or loss
FYToCL FVTPL previously recognized in OCl is reclassified te P&L at the reclassifieation date.

Offsetting Anancinl instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offsel and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there s an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must net be contingent on fature events and must be enforeeable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of
the Group or the counterparty.

Property, Plant and equipment
Freehold land is earried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment ave stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are incliled in the asset’s carrving amount ot recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
geonomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any componsnt accounted for
8s a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residael value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line tethod to atlocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, or, in case of

certain assets, the remaining estimated useful life is as follows:

- Reach Stackers and forklifts (ineluded in Other Equipment's) are depreciated over a period of ten years, based on the technical evaluation,

- Containers and Reefor Power Packs {included in Rolling Stocks- Containers and Reefer Power Packs) are depreciated over a pericd of ten years,
based on the technical svaluation,

- Leasehold Improvemments are amortised over non-cancellable lease period; and

- Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000%re fully depreciated in the year of acquisition/ eonstruction.

The useful lives have been determined based on fechriical evaliation done by the management which are lower than those specified by schedule 1l tathe -

companies Act 2013, in order to reflect the actusal usage of the assets. Group carries Nil resiclual value for ail assets. The assets useful lives are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

.

An asset's carrying amount i written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the assel’s carrying amount is greater that its estimated recoverable
amount.
Gains and losses on disposal are determined by cotparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/{losses).

-
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Intangible Assets

Intangiblo assats purchased ave measured at cost or fair value as of the date of acquisition, as appiicable less accumulated amortisation and aceumuiated
impairment, if any.

Intangible assets of Group consist of Rail Licence Fees, PET Licence Fees, Technical Know-How and Computer Software.

The Group amartises Intangible Assets with a finite useful life using the straight-line method over the following periods:

- Rail License fees paid towards concession agreement, is being amortised over a period of agreement (i.e. 20 years) from the date of commencement of
commerecial operations;

- Private Freight Terminal (PFT) Licence fees paid to Railway Administration is amortised over the period of contract (Le. 30 yoars).

- Technical Know-How, is amortised over a period of agreement (ie. § years) from the date of technology being put to use or over balance period of
agreement from the date of commencement of the commercial operations, whichever is later;

- Computer Seftware is amortised under straight line method over a peried of five years.

Trade and other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current linbilities unless payment is net due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference
batween the proceeds (net of transaction cost} and redemption amount is recognised in profit or Joss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of foan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the Joan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be deawn down In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidencs that it is probable
that some ar all of the Facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility
to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from: the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract ig discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between
the cariving amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, ineluding any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in statexnent of profit and loss.

Borrowings are classified as eurrent liabilities unless the Group hes an uncenditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting peried. Where there is a breach of a materiaf provision of a long-term arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the lability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as curvent, if the lender agreed, after the
reporting period ang before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing Costs

General and specific berrowing costs that are divectly attributable to the acquisition, construetion or produstion of a qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period af tinse that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets thal necessarily toke a
substantial period of time te get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing casts eligibie for capitalisation.

Cther borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions:
Provisions are racognised when the Group has a present logal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to seitle the ebligation and the amount can be reliably estimatcii,_ Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where thore are a nuber of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be fequired in settlement is deteminined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an cutflow with respect to any one item ineluded in the same class of obligations
nray be small '

Provision sre measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting peried. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre -tax rate that reflects eurrent market assessments of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of tine is recognised as interest expense.

Employee Benefits:

(i) Short term obligation

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non menetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the emplayee render the related service are recognised in profit and loss in respect of employees service up to the end of reporting period and are
measured at the amoanc expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are pressnied as current employes benefit obligation in the
balanee sheet,
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{ii) Other long term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for the earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled whelly within the 12 months after the end of the peried in which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected luture payment to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to end of the reporting period using projected unit credit method (PUC methed). The benefits are discounted using the market
yields at the end of the reporting period that have approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or Joss,

(iii} Post employment obligation

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:
Defined benefit ploans such as gratuity; and
Defined contribution plan such as provident fiund.

Gratuity Obligations
The liability recogaised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined banefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually by actuaries using projected unit eredit method.

‘The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting peried on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations,

The net interest cost is ealeulated by applying the discount rate to the balance of defined benefit obligations. This cost is included in employee benefit
expenses in the statement of profit or {oss .

Remensurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they
ceew, divectly in other comprehensive income. They ave included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined berefit obligation resulting from: plan smendments or curtailiments are recognised immediately in profit or
loss as pasl service cosk.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Group pays provident fund contribution to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulation. The Group has ne further payment
abligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution are recognised
as employee benefit expense when thay are due.

(iv) Bonus Plan
The Group recognises a liability and an expenses for bonus, The Group recognise a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has ereated & constructive obligation,

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity
Incremental costs divectly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Compound Finaneial Instrument

Compound financial instrument issued by the Group comprises of compulsorily redesmable non-convertible preference shares. Compound financial
instruinents are split into separate equily and liability components. The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at
the fair value of a similar liability that does not have diseretionary dividend feature/ off market interest rate. Subsenuent te initial recognition, the lability
component of a compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component is inttially
recognised at the difference between the fair vaiue of the compound financial instirument as a whala and the fair value of the liability component. This is
recognised and included in shareholders' equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently re-measured. Any directly attributable brarsaction costs
are allocated to the Jiability and ¢quity components in preportion to their initial carrying amounts, .

Interest related to the liability companent of compound instrument is recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in the cost of an asset).

v

Earnings per Share:

(i} Busic earnings per share

Basic carning per share is caleulated by dividing:

The Net profit or loss attributable to the swner of the Group by the weighted average number of equily share outstanding during the financial year,
adijusted for bonus efements in equity shares.

(ii) Difuted eaenings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

1) the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

2} the weighted average number of additional equity shores that would have been rutstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
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Government grants:

Governmenk grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense itetn, it is recognised as income ot a systomatic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related
assor

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss overthe
expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Exceptional [tems
When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to
axplain the perfermance of the Group for the year, the nature and sn:ount of such items is disclosed separately as Exceptional items.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the oceurrence or non-oceurrenee of ene or
more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized becauss it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a Hability that cannet be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent lability but discloses its existence in the financial
statemants.

Reounding of amotnts
All amouats disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 1II, unless
otherwise stated.

New and amended standards

The Group applied Ind AS 115 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of these new accounting standards are
described below. Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2019, but do not have an impact on the financial
statements of the Group. The Group has not early adopted any standards or amendinents that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Tnd AS 215 was issued on 28 March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18 Revenue and it applies, with limited exceptions,
to ali revenue arising from contracts with its customers. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and requites that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideraton all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the
model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly
related to fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

The Group adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of adoption. The change did not have a material impact on the financial
statements of the Group.

Amendment to Ind AS 20 government grant related to non-monetary asset

The amendment clarifies that where the government grant related to asset, including nen-monetaty grant at faiv vaiue, shall be presented in baance sheet
either by setting up the grant as deferred income or by dedusting the grant in arTiving at the carrying amount of the asset. Prior to the amendment, Ind AS
20 did not sHlew the option to present asset related grant by deducting the grant from the carrying amount of the asset. These amendiments do not have
any impact on the financial statements as the Group continues to present grant relating to asset by setting up the grant as deferred income,

Amendment to Ind AS 38 Intangible asset acqutred free of charge

The amendment clarifies that in some cases, an intangible asset may be.acquired Iree of charge, or for nominal consideration, by way of a government
grant. In accordance with Ind AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, an entity may choose to recognise both
the intangible asset and the grant initially at fair value. If an entity chooses not to recognise the asset initially at fair value, the entity recognises the asset
initially at a nominal amount plus any expenditure that is directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use. The amendment also clarifies
that revaluation modet can be applied for asset which is received as government grant and measured at nominal value. These amendments do not have any
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations

The appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or tncome (or part of it) on the
de-recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary Liability ralating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an
enlity initially recopnises the nor-wonetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, then *he entity must determine the date of the tronsactions for each payment o7 rece ipt of advance congidoration. This Interpretation
does not have any impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS go Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer properly, including property under construction or development into, or out of investment
property. The amendments state that a change it use oceurs when the property meets, ot ceases to meet, the definition of investiment property and there is
evidence of the change in use. A mere change in manmgement's intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. These
amendinents do not have any bupact on the Group's financial statements,
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Amendments to [nd AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Fax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs te consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it way make deductions on
the reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable
profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may inelude the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. Flowever, on initial application of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the
earlicst comparative period may be recognised in opening retained earnings {or in another component of equity, as appropriste), without allocating the
change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact.

These amendments do not have any impact on the Group as the Group has o deductible temporary differences or assets that are in the seope of the
amendments.

The Preparation of financial statements require the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management
also neads o exercise judgement in applying the Group's accounting pelicies.

This nete provides an gverview of the arcas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materiaily
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different that those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates
and jdgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of caleulation for each affected line item in the financial
statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

-« [stimation of Provistons & Contingent Liabilities.

The Group sxercises judgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures to contingent liabilities which is mlated to pending litigation
or ather outstanding claims. Judgement is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify
the possible range of the financial settlement. Because of the inherent uncestainty in this evaluation process, actual liability may be different from the
originally estimated as provision. {Refer Note 31).

-- Estimated wseful life of intangtble assets

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful fife and the expected residual value at
the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group's assets are determined by management at the tinze the asset is acquived and reviewed
periodically, inchuding at each finnneial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events,
which niay impact their life, such as changes in technology, For the relative size of the Group's intangible assets {Refer Notes 4).

-- Estimation of defined benefit obligation

The present value of the defined henefit obligations depends on a number of factors thet are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for post employments plans include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions will itnpact the carrying amount of such obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present valie of
estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the defined benefit obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group
considers the interest rates of government bonds of maturity approximating the terms of the related plan liability. Refer note 13 for the details of the
assumptions used in estimating the defined benefit obligation.

--Impairment of trade recelvables
Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has been managed by the Group through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and eontinuously moritering the ereditworthiness of customers te which the Greup grants eredit terms in the normal
course of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Group uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Group uses
a provision matrix and forward-locking information and an assessment of the credit risk over the expected life of the financial asset to compute the
' expected cre(litblc_)ss atlowance for trade receivables, Refor note 28,

e

-- Estimated fatr value of financial Instruments

The fair value of findncial instrunients that are not traded in an active market is determined using valustion techniques The Management uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting peried.
For details of the key assumptions used and the impact of ehanges to these assumptions see Note 27,

Estimates and judgements are continuaily evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of fubure events
that may have a financlal impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the eivcumstances.
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Notes.annexed to and forming.
3(a) CAPIT AAN:E s
Particulars Total

Cost or Valuation

At 1 Aprif zo1y 6635.68
Additions 5,602.48
Capitalisation 5.5t0.48

At 31 March 2018 1,141.68

At 1 April 2018 1,545.68
Additions 1,818 .00
Capitalisation 2.800.99

At 31 March 2019 159.59

At 31 March 2018 1,141.68

At 31 Maorch 2019 159.5%

Capital work-in-progress s at 3t March 2019 mainly comprises rakes upgradation of Rs. 148.53 lakhs.

4 CHE Ji 3 SF,
Rail License Feos PFT {..I cence Computer
Particulars [Refer Note (a) Fees Software Total
below] {Refer Note () | [Refer Note {¢)
below] below]

Cost
At 1 Aprifzony 3,041.67 200.00 13.46 3,265G.13
Additions during the year - 10G.00 - 100.0C
At 32 March 2018 3,041,567 300,00 1345 3,335:13
Cost
At April zo18 3.041.67 300.00 13.46 3.355.13
Additions during the year - - - -
At 31 March 2019 3,0:41.67 300,00 14.46 335543
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 April zoay 500.00 1473 13.46 f28.10
Ampriisation charge for the year 250.00 10.00 - 260.00
At 21 March 18 75 0.00 24.73 13:46 788,19
Amortisation and impairient
At 1 Aprilzou8 F50.00 24.73 £3.46 788.19
Amertisation charge for the year 250.00 0.90 {0.00} 250.09
At 31 March 2019 1,000.00 34-72 13.36 1,048.18
Net book Value

At 3t Merch 2018 2,201,67 275.27 . 2,566.94

At 31 March 2015 2,041.67 265.28 - 2,306.95

Notes:

a) Rail License Fees aggregating Rs. 5,000 Lakhs (3:-March-:8: Rs. 5,000 Lakhs) paid to Raifway Administintion towards concession agreement is
amortised over the period of contract (i.e. 20 years} from date of commenceinent of commercial operations {dune 1, 2007). Balance useful life of Rail

License Fees as at March 33, 2010 is 8 years and 2 inonths (31-March-18: 9 years 2 months).

by Private Freight Terminal (PFT) Licence fees aggregating Rs. 300 Lakhs {31-March-18: Rs. 300 Lakhs) paid to Railwey Admbstration is

amortised over the pericd of contract (i.e. 3oyes).
¢} Computer software consists of cost of ERP licences and development cost. Useful life of computer softwa

technical obsolence of such assets.

re is estintated to be 5 years, based on
.
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5 INVESTMENTIN JOENT VENTURE

Asat As at
3t March zo19 31 March 2018
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
Equity Investment in Joint Venture
Unquoted Equity Instruments (Al cost)
50,997 Bquity Shaves (31-March-2018: 50,997) of Rs. 10 each held in
Container Gateway Limited. 5.0 5.10
Less: Impairment in the value of investment 5.50 5.30
Aggregate amount of unquoted invesbiment 5.10 5.10
Aggregate amount of hnpairment in value of investirent 510 5.10
[} ) NCIAL ASSETS
6(a) INVESTMENTS
Investment in Mutual Fund at Fair value through Profit and Loss Account (Unquoted)
13,458.506 Units (31-March-18: 32,196.730 units) UTT Moeney Market Fund - Institutional Plan - ~06.68 py
Direet Plan - Growth, NAV Rs. 2,112.5538 (31-March-18: Rs. 1,949.0158) 700 #7.52
Nil units {31-March-18: 130,608.402 units) Baroda Pioneer Treasury Advantage Fund - Plan B 7006
Growth, NAV Rs. NA (31-Mazrch-18: Rs. 2,067.7184) - 2700.61
Nil units {31-March-18: 65,567,325 units) Baroda Pioneer Liquid Fund - Plan B Growth, NAV Rs. NA "
(31-March-18: Rs. 1,698.0365) h 1.310.0
Nil units €31-March-i8: 35,818.144 units) Kotak Low Buration fund - Direct Plan - Growth, NAV Rs. .
NA (3t-March-18: Rs. 2,189.4665) ° 784.23
Wil units {31-March-18: 42,412.564 units) Kotak Floater Short Term Fund Direct Growth, NAV Rs. NA B 120801
,208.

{31-March-18: Rs. 2,850.3504)

Nil units (31-March-18: 7,260,700 units} Aditya Birda Sun Life Savings Fund - Growth -Direct Plan, s
NAV Rs. NA (31-March-18: Rs. 343.7196) - 24,92

Nil units (31-March-18: 505,338.049 units) Aditya Birla Sun Life Liguid Fund - Growth -Direct Plan,

NAV Rs. NA (3:—March—_18: Rs. 270.2473) - £,411.14
401,409.751 units {31-March-18: Nii units} Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund - Growth - e
Direct Plan, NAV Bs. 2517000 {31-March-18: Rs. NA) 1010.35 .
Nil units (31-March-18; 34,812,700 units) Reliance Short Term Fund - Bivect Flan - Growth Optien, ,
NAV Rs. NA (3t-March-18: Rs. 2,617.2085) - g2
Nil units (31-Mareh-18: 35,735.631 units) Mahindra Liquid Fund - Growth -Direct Plan, NAVY Rs. NA P
{11-March-18: Rs. 1,124.3655) ) 401
Nil units (35-March-18: 16,874,703 vnits) LT Liquid Fund - Growth -Direct Plan, NAV Rs, NA (31- 8
March-18: Rs. 2,381.4758) B 40187
194,113.922 units (31-March-z8: Nil units} ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Divect Plan Growth, car
NAV Rs. 260.1610 (31-March-18: Rs. NA) 50501 -
2,222,04 . 9,782.18
Aggregate amount of guoted Investinent and market value thereof 2,222,04 . 9,782.18

Aggregate rrnount of Unpaimnent in value of iInvestment - -




GATEWAY RALL FREIGHT LIMITED

6(h} TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Receivabies from related parties
Less: tmpairment for trade receivable

Total Receivables

Current Portion
Nou-current portion

Break-up of security details

Secured, considered good

Unsetured, considered good

Trade Receivables which have significant inerease In Credit Risk
Less: Impalrment for trade recelvable®

‘Fotal Trade Receivahles

Trade or other recetvable is Rs N4 from directors or other officers of Die Group, Trade or other receivableis Rs. Nil fron: firms or Private Companies i which any direetor is a pastaer, a

director or a member (31-March-18: Rs. Nily
Trade recetvables are non-interest bearing and are generally on tenins of30 1o ga days.

* The provision for the impalrment of trade recetvable has ben made basis the expected credit loss method and other caxes based on management judegament.

6(c) CASH AND CASH ROUIVALENTS

Balances with Banks:

«{n Current accounts

« Depostts with ariginal maturity perieds less than A manths
Cheques on hand

{ash on hand

‘Fota) Cash And Cash Equivalents
For the putpose of the staterent of exsh flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
Balances with Banks:-
-0n Current accounts
- Depostts with ariginal maiutity periods less than 3 months
Cheques on hand
Cash on hand
Total Cash And Casl: Equivalents
Less:- Bank overdraft (nate 147
6(d) OTHER BANK BALANCES OTRER THAN GiLABOVE

Earmarked balances with banks:
-in unckimed Dividend Accounts

As At
3t March 2010
Rupees in Lakhs

8.519.26

951.26

7598.00
95420

9320
2,598:00

53327

27.69
12,46

ﬁza.iR

5332

27.69
12,46

As ol
31 March 2018
Rupees in Lakhs

8247.57

860.27

75 ;SZ 30

7:387.30

7:387.30
86027

77339
2,700.00

26.10

77339
2,700.00

26.10
[roS—— L

496,00

00,




CGATEWAY RAIL FREIGET LEMITED

it A
6e} QEHEREINANCIALASSELS
As at As at
at March an:g 3t Marcl 2018
Cureent Non-cursent Lurrent Nen-alrrent
Security deposits
Considered good 46.04 20450 174 235.14
Considezed doubtful - 200 - 200
46.04 306.23 L7 Raka)
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits - Ze0 - 200
46,04 304.11 174 33534
Bank deposits with eriginal maturity petied more than 12 manths B 356.62 31637 ok
Advances to Related Party
Considered good 220 - 160 -
Considered doubtful 217 - 217 -
4.37 - 377 -
L.ess: Provision for doubtful advances 217 - *17 -
2.20 - 1.60 -
Acerued Ground Rent
-~ Considered good 27.47 - 2182 -
-~ Considered doubtful 7105 - 5337 -
104,52 - 76.69 .
Less: Proviston for doubtful ground rent 7105 - 55,47 -
27.47 - 2152 -
Unbilled Revenue
«+Considered good 2.22 - 24.91 -
-- Considered doubtful - 2 9547 -
222 - 120.38 -
Less: Proviston for unbitled revenue - - 044 -
222 - 24.91 -
Tnterest Aceried but not due o Fixed Deposits with Banks 1586 - 7554 -
Advances recoverable it cash 14864 - 148.94 -
Tisurance claim recsivable 108,19 - 140.60 -
40823 £60.73 72752 476.20
6(} LOANS
Loan to Custainers
== Considered good - - -
-- Considered doubtful 50.00 - %0.00 -
50.00 - 50.00

Less: Allowances for doublful loans 50.00 - 50.00. -




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LEMITED

:

7

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ (LEABILITIES} (NET)
As at As at
31 March 2019 3t March zo18
Rupees it Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
Deferrad Tax Assets:
Provision for Doubtful Debls and Advances 16356 116.86
Other ltems
-- Provision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment 32.81 24.34
-- Provision (uz Bonus ER 4.04
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit Entitlernent SARSE 609.09
Total 720.83 754.33
Deferred Tax Liabifity
Financial Assets at Fair Valuation through profit and lossaecount 7.7t 204572
Depreciation on Praperty, plant and equipment 2ad intangible assets 1,508.74 L3bLey
Total 551045 L5G579
Met Defesred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) (785.62) [CY) 1.562
Movenents in Deferred Tax Asscls/ {Liabilities) {Net)
Minimum
Provislon for "
Particulars Praperty ,plant Intangible Assets | Doubtful Debts and A}terna!'e Tax Other Hems Total
and equipment Credit
Advances :
Entitlesnent
At 51 March 2018 {1,502.84) {+B.23} 116.86 £$00.00 (186.3.4) (B41.46)
Less: Charged/ (Credited}
-to profit and Joss (137.23) 9,56 46.60 (79.54) 190.50 30.29
- to other comprehensive income - - - - 2555 25,55
At 31 March 2010 {1,440.07) (68.67) 16346 5.55 30.10 {783.62)
Deferrsd tax assets and defarred tax liabilities have been offset as thoy refate to the same goveraing taxation Jaws,
COTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Advances
Considesed Good 3740 8¢6.71
Considered Doubtiud X1} st
Berr 659.02
Lass: Provision for Boubtful Advances F230 2t
537.46 80671
Prepaid Expenses 2115 2519
558.0¢ Bi1.00
NCOMETA SIETS {NEE
Advance Income Tax{Net of Frovision)} 947.70 723,99
720 Z29:99
OTHER CURRENT ASSEIS
Advances Recoverably in Kind or for Value to be Received
Constdered Goad 50743 516,12
Considered Doubtful - .
59743 St 12
Less: Provision for Danbtful Advances - -
0743 516.12
Bajances with Governmont Authorities 14.6G 8550
Prepaid Expenses 215.13 204.12 *
L2 SE—...




11(a)
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11{h)

GATEWAY RATL FREIGHT LIMITED

Equiry

Authorised Equity Share Capital:

Equity Shares having par value of Rs. 10 each
As at 1 April 2017

Increase during the year

As at 31 March zo18

Increase during the year

As at 31 March zo19

Equily Shares having par valuc of Re. 25 each
As at 1 April 2017

{ncrease during the year

As at 31 March 2018

increase during the year

As at 31 March zo19

Easued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capitak:

Movement in Equity Share Capital

Equity Shares having par value of Bs. 10 cach
Ag at L April 2017

[nerease during the year

As at 31 March 2018

tnerease ducing the year

As at 31 March 2019

Equity Shares having par value of Rs. 25 each
As at 1 April zo17

Tnerense during the year

As at 31 March 2018

[nerease during the year

Ag at 31 Marcl: 2019

‘Tota] as at 31 March 2o19

Terms and rights attached to Equity Shares

Number of Shares in

Lakhs Rupees in lakhs
402700 4D,270.00
4,027.00 40,270.00
4,027.00 J0,270.00

0.G01 0.025
©.001 0025
Q.00 0025

Nuinber of Shares in

Equity Share Capital
{par value)}

khs Ras. inr Lakhs
2,015.00 20,150.00
2,01 5-,00 20,150-.00
2,015.,00 20,:50_.00
G001 0.025
0.;)01 o.;zs
0.;01 o.t-yg5
2,015.00% 20,150.025

There are two class of Equity Shares issued by the Group having par vahie of Rs. o and Rs. 25 each. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to share inthe
proceeds of winding up the Group in proportion to the runber of and amounts paid on the shares held.

Every holder of equity shores present at the meeting in person or by proxy, is entitlsd to one vote, and upon a poli each share is utitled to one vote.

Compulsery Convertible Preference Shares

Number of Shares in Rupces in Lakhs
Authorised Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares: Lakhis
Compulsery Convertible Preference Shares having par value of Rs. 24.65 each
As at o1 April 2017 1,200.00 29,580.00
Inerease ducing the year . - -
As at 31 March 2018 1,200.00 29,580.00
Increase during the year - -
As at 31 March 2019 .. £,200.00 20,580.00




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED

No. of $haresin

Rupecs in Lakhs

Lakhs
(1} Movement in Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares Capital of Rs.24.65 each

Blackstone GPV Capital Partners {Mauritius) V-H Limited
As at o1 April zox7 1,200.00 24,580.00
Incresse during the year - -
As at 31 March 2018 1,200.00 20,580.00
Decrease during the year 1,200.00 20.580.00
As at 31 March 2019 - -
Gateway Distriparks Limited
As at ox April 2017 - -
Increase during the year - z
As at 31 March 2018 - -
Increase during the year 1,200.00 29,580.00
As at 31 March zo1g 1,200,006 29,580,600

1,200.00 z«)égo.oo
During the year 120,000,000 CCP and 100 equity shares held by Blackstane GPV Capital Partners {Mouritius) V-H Limited (Blackstone) were acquired by GDL.
Consequently, GDL became the holding company with effect from March 29, 2019

(i} Shares of the Group held by Holding company (Joint venturer till zg March 2019}
Equity Shares having par value of Rs, 10 each
Gateway Distriparks Limited
As at 31 March 2018 2,011.00 20,110.00
Incresse during the year 0.098 0.98
As at 31 March 2019 2.011.925" 29, 119.98
(H{1} Details of shareholders, holding more than 5% shares it the Group As gl As at

Equity Shares having par value of Rs. 10 each

31 March 201y

31 March 2018

. - . Mo of Shares (Lakhs) 2,012.00 2,011.00
Giateway Distriparks Limited % Share holding 00.85% 99.80%
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Ra. 24.65 each

: ftins) V-1 Limi No of Shares (Lakhs) - 1,200.00
Blackstone GPV Capital Partners {(Mauritius) V-1 Limited % Share bolding N 150.00%

. . - Mo of Shares (Lakhs) 1,200.00 -

Gateway Distriparks Limited % Share holding 100.00% _

(IV) Aggregative number of shares issuted for consideration other than cash

xi{c) Reserve znd surplus
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Securitics premium reserve 152.05 1208
Retained Eamings 5.569.07 1801412
Capital Redemption Reserve 11,5000 11L,500.00
Total £7,0D1.12 29,636.17

No Equity shares has been issued for consideration other than eash in the Inst 5 years.

(i} Securities premium reserve

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Opening balanee 13205 13205
[ncrease/ {Decrease) during the year - =
Closing balanee 132.05 132.05

{(ii) Retained Earnings

Cash dividends declnred and pnid :

Particulars

31 March 2060

31 March 2018

Lnterim dividend for the year snded on 31 March 2019: Rs, 1.20 per share (11 March
2018; Rs. Nii per share}on Equity Share and Rs. 10.42 per share (31 March 2018: Rs. Nil
ver share) on CCPS

14,922.00

Dividend distribution tax (DB T} orabove

2.067.06

Interien dividend for the year ended on 53 March 20190 Rs. 1.20 per sharee (31 Mureh
20:8: Rs. Nil per share) on Equity Share and Rs. 10.42 per share (31 March 2018: Rs. Nil
per share) on CCPS

474170

Dividend distribation tax (DDT) ant above

979,67

(i) Capital Redemption Reserve

Particulars

a1 March 209

3t March 2018

Opening balance

11.500.00

Addition during the vear (Refer note 39)

11,500,00

Closing balance

11,500,000

13,500.00

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Securities premium reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the prentiwm on issue of shares.

Capitel Redemption Reserve (CRR)

CRR is created out of profits on redemption of Zero Coupon Redeemable Preference Shares

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2058 .
Opening halanes. JB01412 21,200.27 .
Less ; fimpact on adoption of Ind AS 135 - 2416 - M

Net Profit for the period - 11,084 75 830489 .
Amount transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve - {11,500.00}

Less : Cash Dividends 10,663.71 -

Less : Dividend distribution tax 4.041.0% -

Closing balance 2,369.07 18,014.52




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED

LIABILITIES

i Cl

12 NON-CURBENT BORBOWINGS

Besured;

Term Loans

From Banks:

Rupee Loai [Refer Note (a) elow}

Vehicle Loans
HDFC Vehicls Loan {Refer Note (b) below}

Total Non-Current Borrowings

Less: Current maturitics of long ters: debit from bare
Less: Carrent maturities of HDFC vehicte loan

Non-Current Borrowings

venr ended 31 March 2049

As at
31 March 2048
Rupees in Lakhs

Asat
31 March zosg

Rupees in Eakhs

14,970.19 17,570.33
289.72 a76.26
15,250.0% 17.952.50
3.350.50 2,723.96
9430 86.54
“-8% 15,542,09

Nature of secarity and terms of repayment for seaired borrowings

Nature of Security

JTerms of Repnyment

n) Term Loan from HDFC Bank amounting to Rs. 14,863.25 Lakhs (31-
March-:8 Rs. 17,461.92 Lakhs} is secured by fivst exclusive charge on all the
assets (xed and current, present and future) of the Group and Corporate
Guarantee by Gateway Distriparks Limited, the Holding Compauy, for Term
Loanlandz.

1) The Term Loan 1 from HIDFC Bank is repayable in 24 quarterdy instalmetits within 8 years with 2 years
moratorium from the date of each drawdown.

‘ferm Lean of Bs. 3,500.00 Lakhs taken on April 15, 2015 is repayable in instalments of Rs. 145.83 Lakhs
starting from July 2017 with interest @ Base rate + 40bps. w.c.f 01 December, 2016, Joterest rate benehmark
has been revised to MCLR + 25 bps. Interest for current year is ins the range of 8.35% - 8.95% p.a.

2} The Term Loan 2 from HDFC Bank is repayable it 2.4 Quarterly instalments within 8 years with 2 years
morateriuz from the first drawdown,

2) Term Loan of Rs. 1,000.00 Lakhs 1aken on Decensber 22, 2014 is repayable in instalments of Rs. 43.67 Lakhs
started from March 2017 with interest @ Base rate + 40bps. w.e.f 01 December, 2016, interest rate benelmark
has been revised to MCLR + 25 bps. Interest for cwrrent year is in the range of 8.35% - 8.95% p.a.

h) Term Loan of Rs. L,000.c0 Lakhs taken on January 19, 2015 is repayable in instslments of Rs. 4167 Lakhs
started from March 2017 with interest @ Base rate + gobps. w.e.f 01 December, 2016, interest rate benchgnark
has been revised to MCLR + 25 bps. [nterest for current year isin the range of 8.35% - 8.95% p.a.

2) Term Loan of Rs. 1,500.00 Lakhs taken on Jamzary 11, 2016 is repayable in instalments of Rs. 62 50 Lakhs
started froms March 2017 with interest & Base rate + obps. w.e.f 61 December, 2016, interest rate benchpark
Thas been revised to MCLR + 25 bps, Interest for eurrent year is i the range of 8.45% - 8.95% pa.

) Term Loan of Rs. 1,000.00 Lakhs taken on February 10, 2016 is repayable in instalments of Rs. 41.67 Lakhs
started from March 2017 with interest @ Base rate + 40bps. w.e.f ot December, 2010, interest rate benchumark
has been revised to MULR + 25 bps. [nterest for curcent year is in the range of 8.35% - 8.95% pa.

2} Term Loan of Rs. 1,000.00 Lakhs taken on March 15, 2016 is repayable in instalments of Rs. 41.67 Lakhs
started from March 2017 with interest @ Base rate + 4obps. w.e.f o1 December, 2016, interest rate benclumark
has been revised to MCOLR + 25 bps. Interest for current year is in the range of 8.35% - 8.95% p.a

f) Term Loan of Rs. 770.00 Lakhs taken on May o7, 2016 is repayable in instalments of Rs. 32.08 Laklis stated
from March 2017 with interest @ Base rate + 4obps. w.e.f 0t December, 2016, interest rate bencheark has
been revised to MCLR + 25 bps. intecest for eurrent year is in: the range of 8.35% - 8.95% p.a.

3)'I'he Term Loan 4 from HDFC Bank is repayable in 24 quarterly instaiments within 8 years with 2 years
meraterium from the date of each drawdown.

a) Term Loan of Rs. 1,000.00 Lakhs taken on March 3t, 2016 is repayable i instalments of Rs. 41.67 Lakhs
starting from June 2018 with interest @ Base rate + 4obps. w.e.f 0t December, 2016, interest rate benchmark
has been revised to MULR + 25 bps. [nterest for current year isin the range of 8.35% - 8.95% p.a.

) Tern: Loan of Rs. 7,000.00 Lakhs taken on July 28, 2016 is repayabie in instalments of Rs. 201.67 Lakhs
starting from Cetober 2018 withuinterest @ Base rate + 40bps. w.e f 01 December, 2016, interest rate
benchmark has been revised to MCLR # 25 bps. Intevest for current year is in the range of 8.35% - 8.95% p.a.
<) Term Loan of Rs. 644,00 Lakhis taken on August 11, 2016 is repayable in instalments of Rs. 26 83 Lakhs
starting from November 2018 with interest @ Base rate + 4obps, w.e.f 0t December, 2016, innterest rate
benehmark has been revised to MCLR + 25 bps, Interest for current year is in the range of 8.35% - 8.95% p.a.
4) The Term Lean & from HDFC Bank is repayable in 2.4 Quarterly instalments within 8 years with 2 years
moratoriwm from the first drawdown.

Term Lean of Bs, 10 Crore taken on Augist 1i, 2016 is repayable in instalments of Rs, 4167 Lakhs started from
Marels 2017 with interest @ Base rate + sobps. w.e f o1 December, 2016, interest rate benchimark has been
revised to MCLR + 23 bps. [ntevest for current year isin the range of 8.35% - 8.95% p.a.

) Vehicle Finance Loan from HDFC Bank of Rs. 289.72 Lakhs {31-March.
18 Rs. 376 26} is secured by way of hypotheeation of trailers purchased
against the same,

‘The Vehicle Loan from HEFC Bank is repavable in 46 Monthly instatments.
a) Vehicle Loan of Rs. 376.26 Lakhs taken on February 23, 2018 s repayable in instalments of Rs. 963,540
starting from April 2018.

¢} Buyery’ Credit from HDFC Bank amounting to Rs. 492.98 Lakhs (March
21, 2618 Ry 505.59 Lakhis) is secured by first exclusive charge on all the
assets (fixed and cwrrent, present and future) of the Grup,

Buyers' Credit of Rs. 462,98 Lakhs is repagable in July 2019 The interest rate is LIBOR + 0.30%.

The cutying amounts of fimancial and non-financial assets pledged as security for current and nan current borvowings ave disclosed in note 30,
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GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED

otes annexed to an nin rtof the
1l T REROWINGS
Sequred
Querdraft o bank®

16

17

Bugers' Credit from Bank with original maturity with less 1 year (Refer Nate x2c}

As nt

a1 March zo19
Rupees in Lakhs

Ag at
3t Marchzon8
Rupees in Lakhs

540.23 496.00
492.98 50559
1.033.21 1,001,635

*Loats repayable o demand. Outstanding overdraft carry an average interest rate of * MCLR + 25 bps' (31 March 2018: ' MCLR + 25 bps') and is secured by first exclusive charge on ait

assets.

IRADE PAYABLES

-- Qutstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Smell Enterprises [Refer Note below]

-- Qutstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterpriscs

Note

131.06 185.88
4,283.50 3.908.42
$,414.560 »004.30

There ave no Micro and S mall Enterprises, to when: the Group owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days at the Balance Sheet date, The information has been determined o
the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with the Group regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED (Refer Note 38).

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in the range of 110 18 days terms,

For explanation in the Group's aredit risk management process, refer note 28.

iR CHRRENT FINANCEIAL EIABILITIES

Current maturities of long term debt from Banks (Refer Note 12}

Current maturities of HDFC Vehicle Loan (Refer Note 12}

Retention Money/ Deposits from Creditors for Tangible Assets

Other Payables:

«~ Creditors for Tangible and Intangible Assets
-~ Employees

-~ Directors’ resmuneration

Unclaimed Dividend

Auction Surplus

TH CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advanees from Customers

Other Payahles:
-- Stantory dues

IOVERNMENT GRANT (BEPCG
Government Grant {£PCG)
Ovpening Balaznce
Addition
Less: - Income Becked
Closing Balance

Current Grant {Income 1o be booked in 12 monthes)

Nou- Carreit Grstt

335050 2,723.96
94.30 86.54
5477 194.14

R0OL42 486.03
259.90 214.63
1,036.06 417.78
2.86 -
5585 .
5.035.70 4,123.08
1,020.04 662.57
787.36 686.78
1.817.00 L339.35
48573 569.78
86.05 -
129.74 84.04
442.04 485.72
83.07 Bg.04
asB.a7 40108
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TEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
es annexed to and forming part of the

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Services

-- Rail Transport

-- Roed Transpert

-- Container Storage, Handling and Ground Rent
Auction Ineome

Other Operating Revenues

Expert Incentive (SEIS)
Rent

Total revenue from centinuing operations

OTHER INCOME

Interest [ncome

- Interest on Fixed Deposit with Banks - Gross
Unwinding of Discount on Seeurity Deposit
Lisbilities/ Provisions no longer requived Written back
Sale of Serap

Miscellaneous Income

Provision for Doubtful Ground Rent written back (Net)

Gain on fair valustion of financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss

Gain on Salg of Investment in Mutuai Funds

Dividend Income on [nvestment ir Mutual Funds measured at Fair Value

through Profit and Loss
Foreign Exchange Gain
Gavernmment Graat

Total other income

QPERATING EXPENSES

Rail Transport (Refer Note (i) below)

Road Transport {Refer Note {ii) below)

Container Sterage, Handling and Repairs (Refer Note (i) below)
Auction Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

(D) Details of Rail Transport
Rail Haulage Charges

Rake Hiring Charges

Ineentives

Others

Total Raill Transport

(i1} Details of Road Transport
Trip Expenses

Trailer Hiring Charges

Trailer Maintenance Charges
Trailer Drivers Salary

Others

Total Road Transpert

(i} Details of Container Storage, Handling and Repairs
Equipment Handling Charges

Labour Charges

Surveyor Expenses

Internal Shifting Charges

Others

Total Container Storage, Handling and Repairs

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaries, Allowaneces and Bonus
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Gratuity

Stalf Wellare

Total Employee Benefits Expenses

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Eguipment
Amortisation of Intangible Assets

Total Depreciation And Amortisation Expenses

Statements for the year ended 31 March 2

Yeoar ended
3t March zo19

Year ended
31 March 2018

Notes Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs

65,579.48 62,932.59

5.388.33 §,216.46

8.502.55 732045

138.34 123.94

6,533.00 3,135.78

199.76 15074

86.741.46 78,879.96

&(¢), 6{d}, 6(e) 7d4.23 5712

Gle) 4.82 444

102.86 12143

21.53 106G

47.32 51.81

6(b) ~ 32.11

6(a) 2204 27779

&{a} 572.52 752.44
6{a) 27.67 -
20.094 B

18 12G.74 By

1,023.65 L391.57

48,999.0a 4764301

6,054.97 549412

1,647.80 1,661.39

48.08 2488

56,749.9:4 54,823.40

43,737.88 44.945.91

871,90 74196

1,032.02 662.85

1,357.20 1,280.29

48,099.00 47,643.01

2,842.04 2,502.01

1,359.98 1,20%:10

1,169.04 1362 -

555.99 566.09

127.92 105.30°

6,054.97 5:494.12

543.50 586.73

44634 42208

366.89 320.16

19,50 233.87

88.76 89.55

1,6.47.89 1,661.340

36201 2,566,206

12,33 116,38

13 62.65 49.17

B7.48 86.30

s89540 2,818.11

3 Sel72-30 5,329.57

Pl 254.99 260,00

5,732.31




GATEWAY RAIL FREIGET LIMITED
otes annexed to and formis

24

25

25(a)

25(b)

art of the

Notes

Year ended
31 March 2019
Rupees in Lakbs

Year ended
31 March 2018
Rupees in Lakhs

PINANCE COSTS

-- Interest on “Term Loans [2-]
-- Interest on Buyers' Credit 14
-~ Interest on Cash Credit 14
-- Interest on Vehicie Loans 2
-- Premium Payable on redemption of Compotmnd Financial Instrument {including

unwinding of discount}

Total Finance Costs

OTHER EXPENSES

Power and Fuel

Rent

Rail License Fees

Rates and Taxes

Repairs and Maintenance

- Plant and Equipment {including Yard Equipments)

~- Buildings/ Yard

-- Others

Insurance

Customs Staff Expenses

Printing and Stationery

Travelling and Conveyance

Vehicle Maintenance Expenses

Comumunication

Advertisement and Business Promotion

Cotporate Social Responsibility {Refer Note 25(a)]

legal and Professional Charges

Director Sitting Fees

Security Charges

Auditors' Remuneration [Refer note 25(b)]

-- Audit Fees

-- Qut of Pocket Expenses

Provision for Doubtful Debts (net) 6(b)
Provision for Doubtful Ground Rent (net) 6{e)
Provision for Doubtful Advances/ Deposits &(e), 8
Loss on Sale of PPE

Toreign Exchange Loss (net)

Bank Charges

Tetal Other Expenses

Conhjbution to Bharat Lok Shiksha Parishad
PFromotion of Education

Contsibuticn to Prime Minister Relief Fund
Rural Development Projects

Total (bl"pomte Social Responsibility expenditure

Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Act
Amaowi spent during the year on

Construction/ acguisition of any asset
On paurposes other than above

Details of payment to auditors

Payment to aaditors

Audlit Fee

Eimited Review

in other capacities
Reimbursement of expenses
Total payment to auditors

1,401.82 E727.40
12.18 20.87
30.24 33.24
16,07 -
- 244.94
1,460.31 2,035:51
1,099.13 947.90
648.45 650.75
398.48 380.74
48.66 2418
568.43 477.87
131.23 £2:4.70
296.35 28412
32824 230.08
129,72 115,23
64.53 58.81
36370 349.97
.00 12.84
88.45 89.55
£32,60 140.06
170.62 182.05
7t0.22 439.63
84.00 40.35
550.02 520.31
32.00 30.00
2.00 101
90.99 6.86
21.88 -
- 12.09
ap. 4t 0.20
- 71.37
20.209 40.83
6,009.47 §:249.50
10.00 10.00
4.56 750
500 10.00
15106 154.55
170.62 t82.03
165,48 181.57
151.00 15455
%9.56 27.50
170.62 182.05
2100 19.00
1E00 100
2.00 101
34.00 21,01




Notes

GATEWAY RAIL FREIGHT LIMITED
nexed i

Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Year ended

Year ended

31 March zoig 31 March 2018
Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs
26 INCOMETAX EXPENSE

(a) incomme tax Expenses
Current Tax
Cuwrrent Tax on profits for the year 2,815.094 1,893.67
Adjustment for curvent tax of prier periods - -
Total Current tax expenses 2,8135.94 1,893.67
Deferred Tax
Decrease/ (Increase) in deferred tax assets 23.50 {57146}
{Decrease)/ Increase in deferred tax liabilities {79.54) 108.17
‘Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) !é‘é.ﬁé! {463.29)
Income tax expenses 2,760.10 1!230.38
income tax expense is attributable to
Profit from continuing operations 2.960.10 1,430.38
Profit from discontinwed eperations - -
Total 2,760,10 1@;0.38
Disclosed under
Statement of Profit and Loss 2,785.65 1,437.36
Other Comprehensive Income (25.55) (6.98)

2,760,100 1,4 go.ﬂs
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Indin’s tax rate:
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 13,844.85 9,735.27
Profit from discontinued operations before income tax expense - -
Fotal
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34.944% (31-March-18: 34.608%) 4,837.94 3,369.48

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in
calculating taxable income

‘Fax Amotntt Tax Antoimt

- Interest on Zero coupon redeemable preference shares - 84.77
-- Cotporate sociai responsibility expenditure 59.62 63,00
-~ Dividend income from mutual fund (9.67) -

-~ Deferved Tax not created where it is expected to reverse within o f05.01
tax holiday period 47759 595

-« Minimum Aliemate Tax written off 75,12 -

-- Amortisation of prepaid rent as per Ind AS 155 1.54
- Interest on security deposit as per Ind AS {1.68) (154}
--Income that is exempt from tax u/s 80IA of Income F'ax Act, 1961 {2,752.24) . (2,678.80)
~~Fax Benefit Ufs 80 G (3.49) (9.52)
--Other Items (20.64) 6,74

Incotne Tax Expenses .. 2,760.10 1,330.38
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Operating segnents are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided te the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM™) of the
Group. The CGDM, who is responsible for allecating reseurees and assessing performance of the eperating segments, has been idemified 2s the Managing
Director of the Group. The Groitp has identified one reportable segment "Inter-Modal Logisties” i.e. based on the information reviewed by CODM. Thus, the
segment revenue, segrment results, total carrying antount of segment assets and segment lisbilities is as reflected in these financial statement as of and for

the year ended March 31, 2019,

(2} Description of segments and principal activities

The Grouyp is engaged in business of inter-modal logistics. It provides container logisties solution between major [ndian ports and Inland Contatner Depots
($CD) by providing rail services for Expert, import and Domestic containerised carge, integrated with road transpe rtatien, transit and bonded warehousing,

refrigerated container facilities and other value added services.

(b) Segment revenue/results

The Group operates as & single segment. The segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the statement of profit or loss

Segment - Inter-Modal Logistics

31 March 2010

31 March 2018

Revenue from
external customers

Revente from
external customers

i Segnent revenue 86,741.46 7B 87006
[Segment resulls

Profit befere Tax 13,9:17.98 90,7554
Less: Tax expenses 278563 1,437.36
Net profit before non-contrelling interest 13,1923 8318 08

The Greup is demiciled in [ndia. The ammount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the custemers is showa in the table below.

Revenue from external customers

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

e 86,741.46 8.879.90
Qutside India - -
Total B6,741.46 28.879.90

No customez individually contributed to 10% or nsore of tlal revenue.

Segment asscts and Segment labilities

31 March2o1g

a1 March 2018

Segment assets - india 92 81856 106,932.06
Segnent Habilities - india 26,087 41 27.575.80
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(ii)
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Contingent Liabilities
The Group had contingent Habilities st Mareh 31, 2019 in respect of the following:

Particulars 3% March zo1g 31 March 2048
Bank Guarantees and Continuity Bonds executed in favour of The President of India through the 6116 27,06
Commissioners of Excise and Custorns and Sales Tax 349,611.67 353,927
Claims made by the parties not acknowledged as debts:

-~ Container Corporation of India [Refer Note (i} below] Mot Ascertainable Naot_Ascertainable

- Nerthern Ruilway [Reler Note (1) below] 148.94 148.64

The Group and its Holding company {Jeint venturer tif 29 March 2019 and the holding thereafter}, Gateway Distriparks Limited {"GDL") are involved inan
arbitration proceeding with Container Corporation of india Limited (“Concer”) in respect of agreements entered inta by the parties for aperation of container
trains from the [nland Container Depot and Rail 3iding of the Group at Garhi Harsaru, Gurgaon. Concor has raised claims on the Group and GDL on
various issues in respect 0 the sforessid agreements. Based on legal opinion, the Manngement has taken a vigw that these claims are at a prelininary stage
and the question of maintainability of the alleged disputes as raised by Concor under the aferesaid agreements is yet to be determined and are not
sustainable. Pending conclusion of the arbitration, the partics are maintaining "status que” in respeet of the operations at Garki Haesar, Gurgaon.

The Railway Authorities had deducted Rs. 118.94 Lakbs towards Siding & Shunting chaxges for financiat year 2016-11, bowever fetter has been received in
April'1g from Railway Authorities that the deduction made by Railways is not justified and will be refunded back to the Group. However till now the Group
has not received the money, hence the same kas been diselosed as 'Claims made by the parties not acknowledged as debts”. The matter is under arbitration.

‘fhere ate mumerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (5C) judgement dated 28th February, 2019 on Provident Fund (PF) on the inelusion
of allowazices for the purposs of PF centribution as well as its applicability of effective date. The Group is evatiating and secking legal inputs regarding
various interpretative issues and its impact.

COMMITMENTS:

a) Capital Commitiments:

Capital expenditure contracted (net of eapital advance) for at the end of the reporting period hut not recognised as liabilities as folows:

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Property, plant and equipment: Net of Capital Advince of Rs. 1.40 Lakhs (31-March-18: Rs. 205.37 699,14 L1457

Lakhs)

b) Non-Cancellable operating leases:

The Group hins taken ¢ffice premises and fand under non-cancellable operating fease and lease rent of 8s. 44.82 Lakhs (31-March-18 Rs. 42.35 Lakhs} has
been incheded under the head 'Other Expenses - Rent’ under Note “25” in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On renewal, the terms of the leases are
renegotiated.

Particulars - 31 Marchzo1g 3t March 2018

Conymitment for minimum lease payments in relation 1o non - cancelizble operating leases are
payable as follows

Within obe year 46,59 4.8
Later than one year but no later than five years 158.58 193.72

Later than five yenrs 545.64 550.88)

Rental expenses relnting to operating leases

Particidars ai1March 2019 st March 2018
Minimuwn Lerase Payments 44.82 42.35
‘Toral Rental Expenses relating to operating Ieases 44.82 42.95

In addition, the Gronp has entered into various «.ncellzble leasing rrrangements for office premises and Iand in respect of which an amount of Rs. 60363
Lakhs {3t-Mart-18 Rs. 597.43 L.akhs) has been appropriately included under ‘Other Expenses - Rent” under Note *25” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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(a)

(B)

()}

(D)

(E}

(F)

ELATED CTRANSACTIONS

Related Party Pisclosures, as required by Ind AS 24, "Refated Party Disclosures®, are given below:

Helding company {(from 30 March 2019)
The Group is jointly contrelled by the following entities:

. Place of Ownership Interest
Name Type i ti
neorporation 51 March 2015
Gateway Distriparks Limited (GDL)
Joint venturer til 29 March 2019 and the  |Holding company [ndia 99.930%
holding com pany thereafier.
Joint Venturers (till 29 March 2019}
The Group is jointly controlled by the following entities:
Place of Ownership Interest
.
Name Type incorporatien 31March2018

Gateway Distriparks Limited (GDL) Joint Ventirer India 50.001%
Blackstone GPV Capital Partners - "

o R i M 900%
(Mauritius) V-H Limited Joint Venturer {nuritius 4.9
Jointly Controlled Entity

Place of Business | % of Ownership Accounting
N f the Entity i i i
ante of the Entity interest Relationship Method

Container Gateway Limited India 51% Joint Venture Equity Method
Total Eguily Aceounting Investments

Subsidiary Companies of Holding company
Gateway East India Private Linited#s
Gateway Distriparks {Kerala) Limited #
Chandra CFS and Terminal Cperaters Private Limited#

# There sre o transaction with the Group during the year

Fatities in which directors have control/ significant influence
Newsprint Trading and Sales Corporation (NT5C)
Perfect Commmunications Private Limited
Suwwman Logisties Linzited

Directors of the Gateway Rait Freight Limited

{i) Executive Directors
Mz, Prem Kishan Dass Gupta (Chairnan and Managing Director)
Mr. Samvid Gupta{Joint Managing Director)
Mr. Sachip Surendra Bhanushali (Chief Executive Officer)

fii) Independent and Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Ishann Gugpta {Non-Executive Director)
Mrs. Mamta Gupta (Non-Executive Director)
Me. Gurdeep Singh (Non-Exeentive Director) upto 2g March 2019
Mr. Neeraj Mchan (Non-Executive Directer) upto 2g March 2019
Mr. Ramaswamy Kumar {Non-Executive Director)upto 29 March 2019
Mr. Himanshu Dedeja (Non-Executive Director) upto 29 March 2019
Mr. Shabbir Hassanbhai (Independent Director) .
M. Arun Knar Gupta (Independent Director)

Particilars - 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(i} Executive Diveclors

Remuneration 159 53 203.49
Post-emiplovmient gratsity and leave benefits .6G 26.45
Director Sitting Fees 29.00 12.00
Commission 4,025.00 375.00
(i) Non Execulive and Independent Director

Sitting foes & Comunission 19500 123,00
Total compensntion 5y58.22 739.94
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The nunsber of shares used in computing Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

(a} Reconcilintion of earnings used in calenlating carnings per share

Particulars

31t March 2019

3t March 2018

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Group used in caleulrting basic earnings per share

15,084.75

8.304.89

(b) Weighted average mumber of shares used as the denominator

Particulars 41 March 2019 31 March 2018
Weighted average number of ordinary equity shares 2.015,00 2.015.00
nght?d average number of ordinary equity shares to be issued upon conversion of compulsory 2,006.96 2,006.96
convertible preference shares

Total Number of shares used as the denominator for calculaling earning per share 4,021.06 4,021.96

(c) Basic and Difuted earnings per share

Particulars

31 March 2019

a1 March 2018

‘Total Basic and Diluted earnings per share atiributable to the equity holders of the Group

2,76

2.00

() Information concerning the classification of securities

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS): 120,000,000 Compulsory Convertibie Preference Shares of Rs. 24.65 each were issued in August 2010 to
Blackstone GPV Capital Partmers (Mauritius) V-H Limited (Blackstone) against cash. During the year, the Copmays’ CCPS have been acquired by GDIL. These
CCPS holders shall be entitled to non-cumulative dividend of 0.0001% of the face value of CCPS, as and when declared by the Group's Board prior to and in
preference to the payment of any dividend on the Equity Shares. The Holders of CCPS shall alse be eatitled to participate in dividends issued by the Group over
and gbove the Preferred Dividend on an "as-if converted' basis. Subject to applicable laws, GDL holding the CCPS shall have the voling rights to vote on alt
matters to be decided by the Group as if the GDL CCPS had been converted into Equity Shares at the Converston ratio. These CCPS represents 2,006.66 Lakhs
underying equity shares which will be issued to the holders on the date of conversion.

CIAL LIABILEFIES

Collateral against borrowings
All cureent and non-current assets of the Group are pledged as security against debt facilities from the lender. For carrying amount of assets pledged as seeurity
refer note 36.

ASSETS PLEDGE AS SECURITY.

The carrying amonunts of assets pledged as security for current and non - current borrowings are :

Particulars Notes 31 March 2019 3t March zo18
Current Assets v i
Financial Assets
First Charge . .
- Current Investments 6(n) 2,222,044 0,782.18
- Trade Receivables 6{b) 7,508.00 7,387.30
- Cesh and Cash Equivalents a{c) 573.42 3.499.49
- Bank Balances other than above 6{ct) 2.86 -
- Others Finaneial Assets G(e) 408,23 727.52
- Others Current Assets - 10 741.25 Bo5.74
11,545.80 22,202.23
Total Current Assets pledged as Sceurity
Non-Cuarrent Assels
[First Charge
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 76,039.58 79,103.12
Capital Work-in-Progress 3(n) 150.59 1,141.68
Gibor intangitsde assets 4 2,200.05 2,566.94
Other Financinl Assets 6{e) 660.73 376.20
Incowe tax assets {net) [} 047,70 720.90
Other Non-carrent Assets 8 558.61 83r.90
Total Non-Current Assets pledged as Scourity 81,242.76 B4.749.82
Total Assets pledged as Security 92,818.56 106,952.06
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The foreign currency outstanding balances that have not been hedged by any derivative instrument or otherwise as at March 33, 2019 are as follows:

Foreign Foreign INR Amournt Foreign Currency INR Amount
Currency Currency (In Lakhs) Amount {(In Lakhs)
Particulars Denomination Amount 31 March 2019 (In Lakhs) 3t March 208
{In Lakhs) 3% March 2018
2 Marel 2019
Buyers' Credit EURO 6.10 48218 6.10 504,47
Tsterest Acerued but not due on Buyers' Credit EURQ .12 980 0.01 112

NTERPRISES

The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Group from the available information, which has been relied upon by the auditors. According
te such identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006’ are as follows:

. 32 March 2019 J1t March 2018
Partieulars Non-cerrrent Current Non-current Current
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier
- Principal amount . 135.06 . 185.88
-~ Interest thereon - - Bl -

he amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18, along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day. - - R R

‘The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making
payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under this act.

The amount of interest scerued and remaining unpaid. - - - B

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually

ipaid to the small investor. - - " R

The above infermation has been determined to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information availabie with the Group regarding the
statug of suppliers under the MSMED.

The Group had issued 1,150 lakhs Zero Coupon Redeemable Preference Shares (ZCRPS) of Rs. 10/- each to Gateway Distriparks Limited{GDL), joint venturer on July
11,2011 These ZCRPS was entitled to redemption premium ranging from Rs. ;3.38 per ZCRPS in: Ostober 1, 2015 to Rs. 22,07 per ZCRPS on October 1, 2030, During
previous year, the Group redeemed 1,150 Lakh zero coupon redeemable preference shares for a total consideration of Rs. 17,046.9: Lakhs as per the agreemant
which is pursuant to provisien of Section 55 and other relevant provisions of Companies Aet 2013. The Group had created a Capital Redemption Reserve account of
Rs. 11,500 Lakhs equivalent to the nominal amount of the ZCRPS by utilizing the retained earnings.

Blackstone GPV Capitai Partners (Maaritins} VI Limited ("Blackstone™) had invested in 1200 lakh Compulsory Convertible Freference Shares ("CCPS"} and 100
equity shares of the Group. During the quarter ended June, 2018, the Group and GDL had entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) with Blackstone for
acquiring the entire CCPS and equity shares held by Blackstone in the Group. The acquisition was expected to be completed by September 28, 2018, which was
further extendad up to December 28, 2018 viz-a-viz amendment agreement to the SPA dated October 04, 2018. Chit of the tatal agreed consideration of Rs. 68,496
lakhs, Rs 12,499 lakhs was discharged en October 04, 2018 and 219 lakh CCPS were acquired, The balance consideration was to be paid by December 28, 2018.

The transaction conld not be completed by December 28, 2018 due to un-contemplated events in the debt market resulting into delay in raising necossary debt for
the transaction, consequently Biackstone sent a notice of arbitration at Singapore International Arbitration Couneil dated December 29, 2018.

The Group, GDL and Blackstone had entered into a new $PA dated January 25, 20ty for purchase of balance 81 lakh CCPS and 100 equity share held by Blackstone,
at a total consideration of Ks 58,066 Iakhs. As per the new SPA, Rs.3,079 lakhs of the balance consideratian was paid on February o1, 2019 and the balancs cash
consideration of Rs, 54,587.35 lakhs was paid on March 29, 2019 viz-a-viz now share purchase agreement déted Januayy 25, 2019. The Arbitration notice sent by
Blackstone under Share Subscription and Shaveholders Agresment entered between the Group, GDL and Biackstone was withdrawn after the payment of balance
purchase consideration on March 2g, 2019, Post-acquisition of the shares acquired from Blackstone, GDL became the Holding Campany with 95.65% shareholding
as on March 31, 2019 with effect from March 29, 2019,

Disclosure pursuant to IND AS-8 ” Accounting Policies, changa in aceounting estimates and errors” (specified under See 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with
mile 7 of Companies { Accourts) Rules, 2015) are given balow:
Fellowing are the restatement made in eurrent year's financial statements pertaining to previous year

Particulars : Nature 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
(Signed)

Assets

Trade recelvable Reclassifieation ltems = aB7.30 728260

Equiity and Liabilitics

Trade payable other than MSMED Reciassification ltems 300842 4.60.4.69

Other Current Liabilities Reclassification ltems 1.349.35 1,.048.38

The above reclasstfication in the previous year's numbers have been made ot better presemtation in the Gnancial statements and 1o eonfirm to the curtent year's
clagsification/diselosure. This does net have any impact onthe profit & EBITDA and henee no change in the basic and diluted earning per share of previous year.
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